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Corporate Information

ATIEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)

LIU Sau Lai

NG Chi Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
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CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung
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CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEASRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 68, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 45 vears' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 66, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 45 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of

Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 59, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 64, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai holds
a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law
Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital Territory. He has
been practicing law for over 31 years. He is also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, Treasurer and Manager of a secondary school, Manager of

another secondary school and Manager of a primary school in Hong Kong.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 57, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors. She has more than 30 years' experience in plastic materials trading.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 50, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 26 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 64, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants,

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 66, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 38 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong
Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Executive President of The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology
Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also

been awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managemént

EEREEEEASRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 45, is the assistant to the chairman of an investment company.
He has more than 23 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.
Mr Ching had been the executive director, finance director, company secretary and
qualified accountant of the Company. He also worked as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and an executive master degree in business administration from Tsinghua
University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants, and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 60, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd,, Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Ltd., and is responsible for
the overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng
holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director
of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 34 years' experience
in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 44, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and
marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 2| years'

experience in sales & marketing,
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 42, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“FCPA"). He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
("CFA") and a Certified Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over |9 years'
experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury,

administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 42, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches
and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over |7 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui
Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 41, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai
Hing Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Guangdong and
other cities in Souther China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in
Economics) from Queen’s University. He joined the Group in 2004 and has over |5 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr Hui Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the

son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam.
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Chairman’s

Statement

EHHRE




RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2015. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,619,826,000
(2014: HK$1,757,296,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$25,225,000 (2014: HK$3,241,000). Earnings per share for the year were HK6.83
cents (2014: HKO0.88 cents). The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKI1.0 cent (2014: Nil) per share. Together with the interim dividend of Nil
(2014: HK1.0 cent), the total dividend payment for the year under review is HKI1.0 cent
per share (2014: HK1.0 cent).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the declining prices of oil in the second half of last year
has affected the material cost of plastics and product prices which in turn has brought
uncertainties to the Group's business development, as growth in the Chinese economy
has continued to slow down and market demand in Europe has yet to recover. For
the year ended 30th June 2015, the Group's total turnover was HK$1,619,826,000,
representing a year-on-year drop of 8%. The sales volume of products also decreased by
5% over the same period last year. However, the Group has continued to provide value-
added services to its customers and develop sales of products with higher gross profit
margins, optimised its product mix and prudently managed its inventory to increase the
proportion of colorant and engineering plastics businesses with higher margins. As the
material costs started to stabilise in the first half of this year, total gross profit increased by
4% to HK$199,139,000 with the gross profit margin up from 10.9% in the same period
last year to 12.3%.

Under the influence of minimum wage policy in China, the Group's labour costs have
increased by 6%. This rise, plus the influence of inflation and the year-on-year increase
of distribution costs has contributed to the increase of operating costs during the year.
However, attributable from the premium quality of product and service, solid customer
base and increase of other net gains during the year under review including unrealised
gain of forward foreign exchange contracts, profit attributable to equity holders increased
more than seven times to HK$25,225,000 (2014: HK$3,241,000). Basic eamnings per share
were HK6.83 cents (2014: HK0.88 cents).

To reward the support of its shareholders, the Board of Directors has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share (2014: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In the colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resin business segment, the Group
has strived to maintain a close relationship with customers in the decorative construction
materials market. In view of the increasing demand for high value-added products in the
consumer market in Southern China, the Group has continued to allocate more resources
to secure higher-margin customers for trendy and sophisticated products such as smart
electronic healthcare products. These efforts have helped to contribute a satisfactory
segmental performance with turnover up 1.1% to HK$380,173,000. The Group has also
made use of its existing technological edge to capture the opportunities from higher
domestic demand for quality sanitary accessories. With an expanded customer base, its
Xiamen office registered a satisfactory performance with turnover up 50% year-on-year to
nearly HK$40,000,000. The Group has also formed a dedicated team for its automobile
customers in Eastern and Northern China aimed at offering them a series of high quality
automobile-related products and services, as well as sharing resources with other business
segments to boost overall profit growth. Meanwhile, the Group has continued to strictly
control of its costs and consequently, gross profit margin has increased by one percentage
point during the year under review. However, profit before taxation decreased by 29%
year-on-year to HK$33,349,000 due to rising labour, transportation and warehousing

costs.

The weaker macroeconomies both domestically and in Europe have seriously impacted
the Group's engineering plastics business. The volatility of the Renminbi exchange rate has
made customers more cautious in their procurement operations. Despite these negative
factors, the Group's transformation of its sales model has started to reap benefits with
the engineering plastics business recording a bottoming out with turnover up slightly to
HK$187,886,000 during the year. Profit before taxation also increased by 8.4% year-on-
year. The Group has continued to broaden its product mix to develop business with
more potential export customers, including the provision of food-related equipment
and tools for internationally-renowned food manufacturers, thereby creating new profit
contributions. During the year, the Group has also continued to produce and sell metal
substitutes which are mainly used in kitchenware and automobiles in order to support the
business transformation of local customers and continue to bring in profit contribution. In
addition, the Group's office in Dongguan achieved an encouraging performance with profit
before taxation more than doubling when compared with the corresponding period last
year. The Group's leading-edge product technology remained as its competitive advantage
enabling it to outperform it peers by meeting the increasingly stringent requirements of
customers from Mainland China and overseas for product quality. This advantage has also

helped the Group to expand its customer base in Southemn and Eastern China.

10 | Annual Report & & % % 2014 /2015

EEEBNWRAIN (&)

EHEIEE (&)

RECH 6B REREST  KNEBRRE
HEMAREMHEFPNETSIEBEIN A
REFHEMNEEM SR EEERNE X
THEE AEEEERNERERAES
EETREERSHENBHEERNSENE
PrUBtreEBRE AT 2 —H—
£380,1730008 T ¥BERREL - MEZE
AREREMBEMES  KHEEEARFE
REEHAERT L MEROEH BT
P FAREBUREFND RAIEBERR
RBERR EXERFLABHICETER
i140,000000/8 7T © BN - SHEER RELM
BRESERF  AEEENVEBERNARF
RU—FIRERENREEERRRE -
VTHASEEMEEIBERERLEE «
BRAMER - BERE  AEERFERED
B AER  EFXEE A5 58
RMEHRAL  E&RARKALN 2k
BARFBEAFRBEMTRED ZZTLE
33,349,000 7T

BATRBHEBI AW REMNNE OTER
AFERKN  MBNEENRES  ARBE
KEHLEFPRBEREAEZE BASEHEE
BREBRARREE AR kD BEEENE
WEH EFHE 187,886,0008 7T * EEENER
BREEA  BREAENBREAFERBHEESZ
NEMZFE - BN AEBEEREERA
EUBERELAEEINEOTERF 8154
BERALZRMEERRERQEBNRERA
B BASBEERMOBFER - 350 A%
EREAMEELEERFEETZRAREAR
AENSBERER UEAENEF£5E
B BEASESRBAER - B A5E
MRREDARMNRRLAEE  HBRBAA
MREFRPAABEMARE - AREAINE
LREHERLGENEREE  AKEELAN
ERRMNMBEXNAERFEDY  2AEER
REFHEML  AHBEEREFRER DR
MR PEM



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Owing to its higher susceptibility to changes in the market environment, the plastics
trading business has recorded a turnover of HK$1,047,604,000, a decrease of 2% as
compared to the corresponding period last year. Nevertheless, the Group has leveraged
its technological advantage to increase the proportion of high-margin products with unique
value-added technology and more specialised applications such as three-dimensional
(“3D") printing materials and public transportation systems, as well as carefully qualifying
financially-stable customers. As a result, gross profit margin increased by one percentage
point year-on-year. The Group has also focused on expanding its customer base in heavy
industry such as automobile manufacturers. The sales office in Tianjin has achieved the
best results with a turover of nearly HK$40,000,000 during the year, an increase of 90%
as compared with the same period last year. In addition, its sales office in Chongging
targeting the Western China market has begun contributing revenue to the Group, driving
overall profit. The Group believes that the implementation of growth strategy by focusing
on the development of high-margin products by leveraging its diverse product mix and
technological advantages can capture the growth opportunities across various regions in
China.

PROSPECTS

As the macroeconomic environment continues to face challenges, the Group's
management is prudent about the prospects of its future development. The more notable
fluctuation of oil prices and Renminbi exchange rates in July and August this year and the
impact of the chemical explosions in the Binhai new area of Tianjin on the customers
in Northem China added uncertainties to the course of the Group's development. The
Group will continue its strategy of developing high value-added products with higher
margin, work selectively with creditworthy customers and prudently manage its inventory
to combat the potential adverse effects of external uncertainties and boost its overall

profitability.

The management believes that the Group's top product quality has been widely
recognised by international brands. This high quality of its high value-added products is
expected to gain promising growth for the Group as the U.S. economy continues to
recover. On the other hand, Mainland China still has huge market potential in the long
term. The Group will focus on producing the necessities with rigid market demand such
as personal healthcare products and food packaging, while at the same time producing
the products targeting customer segments with higher discretionary spending. These two
products are less affected by economic cycles and can enable the Group to maintain
stable development amidst the challenging economic environment. While seeking
more cooperation opportunities with international brands, the Group will adhere to its
development objectives of capturing opportunities in Mainland China and expand its
domestic market and gain market share in surrounding areas through leveraging its existing

market presence.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
PROSPECTS (Continued)

In order to maintain cost controls, as the fluctuation of oil prices and exchange rates and
the rising labour costs still present challenges to its operations, the Group will continue to
adopt sound business strategies and a prudent financial management approach aimed at
effectively managing production costs and also realising greater synergies through sharing

internal resources in order to advance its long-term development.

Calling on its wealth of industry experience accumulated over many vears, the professional
management team will continue to lead the Group to overcome future challenges and
seize opportunities across a wide range of markets and ultimately bring satisfactory retumns

to its shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and banking
facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2015 the Group has available
aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$679,746,000, of which approximately
HK$312,735,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by
the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong owned by the
Group (see Notes 16, |7 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group's
cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2015 amounted to approximately HK$88,048,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2015 was approximately 64%, based on the
total bank borrowings of approximately HK$317,469,000 and the shareholders' funds of
approximately HK$497,095,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities are

disclosed in Notes 32 and 3.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Continued)
At 30th June 2015, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
EFHRE

SVERBR ()

REBEETRZINERR - REBEFTUINE
BHAN -N-_T-RFRA=TH RER
ZEHEHZAEDT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FTAT

Sell HK dollars for US dollars HEBTUEAZET 2,269,800 1,131,000
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEETUEAET 15,600 15,600
Sell US dollars for Renminbi HEETUEAARE 1,070,628 1,297,140

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2015, the Group had approximately 733 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate its
employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social
or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its

employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

l, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th September 2015
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Report of the
Directors

EFEERE




The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 30th June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 40.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2015, the Directors resolved not to declare any
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 |st December 2014.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per ordinary

share, totalling HK$3,692,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2015, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained earmings, amounted to approximately HK$68,769,000
(2014: HK$65,187,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 153.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5th

December 2002. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their

discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe for the shares

of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options to

eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on |8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option may be granted
under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at the date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which
is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

()

)

i)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire more
than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and accepted by

the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$ 1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant
of a Share Option, (i) the average price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 0 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2015 are set out in Note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Mr LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Sai Chung, Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony and Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), separate
resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company to approve the further
appointment of Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul as Independent Non-executive Director at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.

Report of the Directors
ESEERE

Ex
AEREEZEZNT :

Sk (LR
HEN (AR )
EFRHL(FER)
Rk (B EFREE)
BABLT

SEEE

gk

BBk RE

Ik

* BUFETEE

REAARZARMR  FEESFHABES
;Eo

REBARNBZ AEIARIE ST & FFHEEL
ETEBIRMBSEARBRER NS
BRYBSEEST-

RETHIAES LRI AR DM
14EAA3GHRTE  BRERARSEERBL
FHTES EHEBREAERHARAR
RREERRAFA S LILE -

BYFNTEEIREADAZARMAER
- ERSBHESE -

AEENFME BB CERABRIEE
BESRERABERIFRERRAKRAR
BHEL 2SN - BRRENREARRFE N
%R AREBHRE  ABRBEIROTR
ABUENRENREK - SREEASE
Bt B R RBAEKE D - BRSEEERKR
ReRENE B - FHEBERFEESR
& W RETEOLRREE

BUFATES MR EAERRAKES
ERTAREEQRMT L AR KER - F
WEBREFEESET -

Annual Report 4 & # % 2014/2015 | 19



Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2015, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0. 10 each in the Company at 30th June 2015
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

ERREZANARNHA
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors BEENRSF BAES TEER REER Hi gz
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faue’Sites Long positions ¥ & 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B A Long positions F & 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABLT Long positions F & 1,423,000 — — Q)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

(a) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a company in
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 6,000,000
shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung,
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable

preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by

Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong.
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of

no par value in Evergrow.

() The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held

196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2015, are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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ZERDT 2 196,721,500 T1E8 Good Benefit
Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # % ° Ever Win
Limited ([ Ever Win])#%8 Good Benefit B9 2
P+ A2 — (MR () o tEoh - 6,000,000
R A% 15 B8 Ever Win #3555 ©

Ever WinBRE(E | f17T2 ZBRH 50,001 i)
RFHREERE STt BEEERARBRS D
A% Ever Win A RBEE BN A] K 34 A B Bl
SERAR 33,957 R 5 R o

% % KB 21967215008 T3 i Good
Benefit’ A& ° Evergrow Company Limited
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BRI () o Ak - 20820008 B 13
i Evergrow B 155 ©

Evergrow & R I & | 11 7T 2 & 8 B% 17 50,000
BREAFEAEERSE - FEAKETERES
Evergrow AR EEENA LR EEELRH
30,823 % °

BEE Good Benefit(RZT—RFA=1
BEBADTE 196721 500 BN ) RAZ B35
XM

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors BEENE BRBEE BERBEAL
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudiyts 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong R 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBRL 80 08%
Others Hip 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%

Annual Report # [ # & 2014/2015 | 21




Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2015, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

-

BEERRETHRAERARFDR
HEMBEBIEREARESZ
BER/RRE @)

RZE-RFAA=TH TIEZHARA
ERRHERAAERERETE RGN #5 -
M % A Al ¥ 2 & T Ngai Hing (Internatlonal)

shares. Company Limited ATBE E F il S5 ZRERET
ZIEIRHE -
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
FEERREECROEE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EEpE BARR Hifg s
Mr HUI Sai Chung Attt A 200,000 50,000(i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN A 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: [T
() These shares are held by Ever Win. iy  ZERDBEer WinkEE -

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2015, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR EERBRTBRAERARAAR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES HEMEBRERRARES 2

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED BER/IRR M)
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above, bR Eai[ BBRRAE | —BRPTAISN -

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its @ REAFEETMERAN  KA2F - HER
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives NRISHEFEAMBARLELETE
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or Az REARAVESTHAZRSTHA
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and BAHEEERDRISEMEMEAES

ZBINHESMER - R

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age b) BEZ ZETBAE - HEBxXTN

of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the BATZ FUBEER TARBALA
Company, or exercised any such right. RSB 2 R - SHEITRILFRER -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FERRREADAAREZEZRAR
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2015, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under BREXFBRBEERES I REXAT
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any ~ REBEFHEHRAIE 336 EEXVEMFEZ TR
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's BRELMABT ARAIBEZEFMALR

issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed “E-RFERNAZTHEBEEARRIEBITRA
above. BRI L m AR @A
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BEEEHN

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any FRATEI VK FEARNBERAAREE2E
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the HIENEEHD 2 ERRITHEH

year.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 23%
Five largest suppliers combined 53%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2015 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2015 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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s> 7%

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th September 2015

Report of the
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2015, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Corporate Governance Report

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition

of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings on

a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the

Board held a total of four regular board meetings, eight ad-hoc board meetings and one

general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

EEERRE

Exg

EZEHA EFEERREFHENEY
ARENMESEABYENRTOINER  ME
PHRTEREFHTEZNESTRTOE -
EZENB AT EEMME BE  KEX
HEER /R ZBR - EFEUTHAER
SEERASRIGRTARTER - RER

ESEQABRTHNAEHESS S  \E

out below: HEFEEI R —ARRAE - EZ8EULR
ESHREHBNT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #5 Attendance B3R Attendance
Attendants H & PlgRy HERH SFRE HERE KERE HEAY
Executive Directors: BITEE -
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FHREE(FE) 4 4 8 8
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN KL
(Deputy Chairman and (BIEE#
Managing Director) EFHHIE) 4 4 8 8
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEBL
(Vice Chairman) (BIE£/E) 4 4 8 8
Mr LAl Kam Wah RBELL
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIZEFHEE) 4 4 8 8 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL 4 4 8 7 | !
Mr NG Chi Ming REREE 4 3 8 8 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYHHTEE -
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fESEE 4 4 8 | | |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIEEL & 4 4 8 | | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmELRE 4 4 8 | | |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Comporsition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance
(Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board
and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial
management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6
to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are;

. to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

J to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

J to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

0 to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2015, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2015, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2015, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2015, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG

Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 38 to 39.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Mr LAl Kam Wah, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

5o as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2015 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

REZEE

ARANMREZEG((REZEG IR -F
—ZHEZAZTABREBRAREOBES
BN - REZEEMERBUFNTEER
—BRTERAK - AARIHELENT

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESERY,BRE HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 212 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUkEEEE 112 50%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngEL & 22 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung Fiaugtbes 22 100%
Role and Function ARARBE
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and REZEGHATHRIEZTENLERE R
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular k& (B & ﬂq : 'ﬂl w ) Wt
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; BREEMESERLER  BAAGEER

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee would review the Board's composition from time to time where Board
diversity would be considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2015 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

EEERRE

EREEE
RRBRIBH T2 REFARE 2 AR BINE

REEQ([BRZEg )2 BREEEEN_F

—ZHEZRAZTRBEH - BERZECHREE
BIUFRTEFEN - EREEGZAKRL
RACSEMT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HEGRREBRE HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 23 66.66%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUkEEEE /3 33.33%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngEL & 33 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the

Audit Committee:

(@)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;

ERZE ST RRARRRYBRE RAEHE
IRFCEBUERAEER  UREKXRGSNE
X BB R 1S R AT RAIR ©

ERZEENRERERTESHMASRM
H(EGZ B AMERESD R ETRAINH
MEZREN - ZRERZEENTIERART
M

(@) ZREINEZEENNE ERREE E R
BB EORE

(b) MEZTAEFRAR Sk BINEZEED &
EZIE R
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the

Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting; and

(d)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where

necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2015, the Audit Committee met three times, in particular,

to review and discuss the followings:

0 the auditing and financial reporting matters;

0 the appointment of external auditor;

0 the establishment of internal control system; and

. the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all

senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

EEERRE

FHZESS

YN B A e - S NG F <
WZEg((HFMEZES ) cREREER-F
—ZE-AZT R BEH - - HFMEEEh={
BUFATESFR A TEFAN - HHZ
e AR RERENT :

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HEGRRE BN HE®
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) WEELE(ZEELE) 22 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUkEEEE 112 50%
Mr CHING Yu Lung L E 22 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eausibtes 22 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent ZESARRREARABHE 2FHME

procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2015 to review the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of the

Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

REAME

WNER - RRAGZHME LR KBS EB
PR 2 B LOFBRRYE - MARAIRZE
BRBENMEN  ABRERNOT :

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RAKBRMZEZRE 2,117,000
Non-audit services including; BRI BE
— review of interim results — B HEE 268,000
— taxation services for the Group — RASERM 2 HIBRE 284,600
— agreed upon procedures on the Group’s —AEERFRENMZATRF
annual results announcement 22,000
Total B 2,691,600

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE PEBLEES
Composttion A
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance AR EETAZES([MEERZES])
Committee) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in R-E——F=RB-+,NABRESFUETHE
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all BEHERKY - CEERTECHIEB Y IEH
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the TESAR - BAREEELSEDT
Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HEGRRY BREY HifE %
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE (FEELE) 22 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBER & 112 50%
Mr CHING Yu Lung TRINgESLE 22 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing TEERLRECEERENBRIAEBCEE

the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2015 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a

satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct independent
internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. During the
year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the

Company and its subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr Chan possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the functions of a company
secretary. Mr Chan is the secretary of the Board and various Board committees including
audit committee, remuneration committee, Corporate Governance Committee and

nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2015, Mr Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”):

[ by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
|0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2693-1663;
3. by fax at fax number (852) 2694-0877; or
4, by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders” questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice™) at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (ii) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code
provision E.1.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I %R EM R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 40 to 152, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32), and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2015, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th September 2015
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Consolidated Income Statement

FEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2015 BiE = F—HFNA=1THIFZ

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pl TR TRT
Revenue Yozt 5 1,619,826 1,757,296
Cost of sales HE A 8 (1,420,687)  (1,565368)
Gross profit e 199,139 191,928
Other income Hp g A 6 5318 4,867
Other gains, net Hith s — FME 7 18,370 779
Distribution costs DK 8 (76,358) (71,632)
Administrative expenses T 8 (103,012) (99,264)
Operating profit RE R 43,457 26,678
Finance income B 321 208
Finance costs M%ER (9,208) (9.237)
Finance costs, net MBER-FE 9 (8,887) (9,029)
Profit before income tax BR A4 A 34,570 17,649
Income tax expense HIEX 10 (7,566) (13,489)
Profit for the year AR A 27,004 4,160
Attributable to: AT AT :
Equity holders of the Company NGl & I 25,225 3241
Non-controlling interests IR 1,779 919
27,004 4,160
Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity RERRRBRRENS
holders of the Company during the year R ARV
N L3 =
(expressed in HK cent per share) UASBBILE)
— Basic and diluted —EALEE 13 6.83 088

The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FNVEINBENMTRESHBREANEES

statements. e

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the profit R RBIREZREF BRI 12

for the year are set out in Note |2.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHBER

For the year ended 30th June 2015 BiE = F—HFNA=1THIFFZ

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Profit for the year AEHH 27,004 4,160
Other comprehensive income: Hfhira e -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: eI BERaR 2 BEE ¢
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale financial asset (Note 20) ARHEMBEE SR
Yz (B &£ 20) — 270
Currency translation differences bE X HE Il (8)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEHMETE R Il 262
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEGERmER 27,015 4422
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FElREEEER -
— Equity holders of the Company /NG 25,236 3,503
— Non-controlling interests — I 1,779 919
27,015 4422

The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FNEINBEHNMNFTRERAGEVBRENE

4
statements. By o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEBERR/R

As at 30th June 2015 —FE—HFNH=+H

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt £ TR TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN T e 16 132,642 134,718
Leasehold land and land use rights ME T TP A 17 21,510 22,225
Investment properties REME 18 105,075 103,559
Intangible assets EVEE 19 — —
Available-for-sale financial asset ARHEMBEE 20 2,000 2,000
Deposit for acquisition of land use right Wb RAECEE 36 3,273 =
Deferred tax assets EEMBEE 30 5,990 5,571
Prepayments for property, mE - BERRBEEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs SCINE 2,463 2,348
272,953 270421
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 7E 22 287,785 283,087
Trade and bills receivables BIRBARERER 23 276,51 280998
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEKR - AR EES 33,149 21,407
Tax recoverable A] B 38 846 14
Derivative financial instruments TTHEEMIA 24 111 152
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHEHS 25 88,048 97,278
686,450 682,936
Total assets BEE 959,403 953357
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable NG 3N
to the Company's equity holders K
Share capital BRA 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium R (B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves bR 28 81,477 81,88l
Retained earnings R 28 316,232 290,592
497,095 471,859
Non-controlling interests el g 21,336 21,461
Total equity G g 518,431 493,320
The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FNEINENMTABRGEMBERENE
statements. By o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBERRE

As at 30th June 2015 —FE—HFNH=+H

2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P& TERr TER
LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIEEE 30 5,976 5998
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables BHRMAR 26 71,819 98,459
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HiENRK  EHGT e RERER 26,241 19310
Bank borrowings RITIEE 29 317,469 294,828
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 24 14,554 34,533
Tax payable eI 4913 6,909
434,996 454,039
Total liabilities BAaR 440,972 460,037
Total equity and liabilities mrEaRaE 959,403 953357
Net current assets FRBEE 251,454 228,897
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAR 524,407 499318
On behalf of the Board REEZE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
SRR HEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Eg G EREFLMTE

The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FNZI2BNMTRBAGREMBRROE

4
statements. BEin o
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Balance Sheet
BEEAER

As at 30th June 2015 R=F—AFNA=+H

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(hE TERT FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HWEARIRE 21 62,711 62711
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEHR P B 2 R 21 105,867 102,670
Other receivables H e Wik 284 284
Cash and bank balances Bé MRITHES 25 51 105
106,202 103,059
Total assets BEE 168,913 165,770
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to NEIREEERA
the Company's equity holders R
Share capital R 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium BRARE 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H i 28 62,511 62926
Retained earnings R & T 28 6,258 2,676
Total equity B 168,155 164,988

The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FNEINENNZTAGRAVSRRMNERLT

statements. 3o
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Balance Sheet
BEARER

As at 30th June 2015 R=F—AFNA=+H

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By sE FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R

Current liabilities mHaE
Accruals BIREA 758 782
Total equity and liabilities mEsNERE 168,913 165,770
Net current assets ERBEE 105,444 102,277
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDAE 168,155 164,988

On behalf of the Board

REEZE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

ATt HEX

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
£ BIEEREFEILTE

FHEI2BNMERGAMBRRNERS

1/'\ ®

The notes on pages 49 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEESRBEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2015 BiZ =F—HFNA=1THILFE

Attributable to equty holders of the Company
RERFERSH

Other reserves

Aol

Avallable-for-

silefancal  Bxchange

Share assetresenve fuctuation Non-
Share Share option Cptd  Reclaion  AREHE reseve  Retaned  controling
capita premium resenve resenve e HEE i) eamings interests Total

B REEE BRERE AABRE  ERRR B REER  REEN HENER 2]
HKOD  HKSOO0  HKSO0  RKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOMD  HKSO0  HKSOMD  HKSOO  HKSO00
Thn  TAn TR TEn  TEr  TAm TR TR TEn TR

At tuly 2013 WZE-Z%tA-A %90 666 45 408 75% 100 TAle D45 DAY RN
Comprehensive income meliE
Proft for the year KEEH - - - - - = = 3% 919 4160
Other comprehensive income Afptrals
Revaluation gain of an avallable-for-sele A B AR Effla
financil aset (Note 20) (Ht20) = - = = = 00 = = = pi!
Currency translation differences Ei=8 - - - - - B (8) B @
Total comprehensive income FelEaE = = = = = m @) 34l 919 )
Transactions with owners HiTEE RS
201212013 fal dividend pid $H=F-=/5-=FF
RBRE - - - - = = = (36%) = (3692)
201312014 interm chvidend paid $HZ5-=/25-MEE
hERE = = = = = = = (369) = (3692)
Dividends paid o non-controlig nterests XM TEAbIER 2 RE - - - - - = = = (9 (194
Disposd of asubsidary (Note 31(¢) HE-HBRRHE3I(0) = = = = = = = = 7 7
Totalransactions with owners BRERIRG R - - - - = = = o e )
At 30th Jone 2014 HWZE-MERAZTA %90 666 455 408 759 130 T 2052 Al 3

The notes on pages 49 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F9E 152BNMTREEABRRNERL

statements. 5 o

46 | AnnualReport 4 # % 2014/2015



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEESRBEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2015 BiE = F—HFNA=1THIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRFEGB

Other reserves

ARG

Available-for-

sale financial ~ Exchange

Share asset reserve  fluctuation Non-
Share option Copital ~ Revauation ~~ WAEHE reseve  Retained  controling
Share capital ~~ premium reserve reserve reserve  BHEE ) earnings ~ interests Total

Bs  BAER BEREE ARG EEG B RERR RERA ALRE 4%
HKSO0  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKS'O0D  HKSDO0  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSO0  HKSOM  HK$O00
Tén TR TEn TR TEn  TAm TR TEn  TEr  TEn

At Ist July 2014 N-Z-mELA-A 36,920 62,466 415 408 759 1310 7,158 290,59 21461 493320
Comprehensive income Fala

Proftfor the year KEEH - - - - - - - 15,05 1779 27,004
Other comprehensive income Afplala

Curency tranlation differences EiZE - - - - - - Il - - Il
Total comprehensive income GRknEE - - - — — - 1l 25205 1,779 27015
Transactions with owners BHEELRS
Share options apsed BRELIL - - (415) - - - - 415 - -
Dividends paid to non-controling iterests X FHAHER 2B - - - - - - - - (1,904 (1,904)
Totalransactions with owners BREEL R R - = (419) = = = = 415 (1504 (1904
At 30th June 2015 RZB-RE7A=TA 36,920 62,466 - 408 759 1310 7,169 316232 21,336 518431

The notes on pages 49 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F49F ) BRI AGAMBRENBEL

2N =12

statements. 1/\ o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

u'l\éiﬁﬁiﬁé X

For the year ended 30th June 2015 BiE = F—HFNA=1THIFZ

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P T TR
Cash flows from operating activities REXB2RER
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZHE 31(a) 10,265 83,578
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNENR (3,015) (4,551)
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") B E AR K
income tax paid ([ B ) e (7,820) (11,632)
Interest received BIHLE 321 208
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities & & %K FT(FR)/ EXZFRE (249) 67,603
Cash flows from investing activities REXEBZHER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE  BELRE (13,196) (9,349)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERR
plant and equipment PSR 31(b) 339 77
Prepayments for property, plant and M - BERREREE
equipment and renovation costs SCINE (2,463) (2,348)
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use right W mEREz RS 36 (3273) =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A 31(c) — (51)
Net cash used in investing activities REXBAERAZERE (18,593) (11,671)
Cash flows from financing activities REXB HER
New bank loans MBRITER 223279 120,907
Repayment of bank loans BRR|TEX (169,960) (142,108)
Decrease in trust receipt loans ERREET D (32,915) (29.944)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests SENRIE 2 i [ S (1,904) (1,904)
Dividends paid SRR &) — (7,384)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITIEER S (I',136) (11,330)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities MEEBMES/(FR)2FRE 7,364 (71,763)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBReFEIRD (11,478) (15,831)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOzRekReEFR 31(d) 90,036 105,875
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXE BT E Il (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBEKRFH 31(d) 78,569 90,036

The notes on pages 49 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FOEINNAENNEAGANBSRRMERS

statements. %o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group™) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI |,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 24th September 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS™).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit” as
set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule || to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments/revises to standards

and interpretation

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments/

revises to standard and interpretation which are mandatory for the

Group's financial year beginning on Ist July 2014

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
19 (201'1) (Amendment)
BAGAERNE 9% (ZF——) (BFIX)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

BREERERN (BITA)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)
BERGRAFEE (BAIA)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BRGERFE9% (BFTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 1) (Amendments)
BRI HRELELFE 057 « BBTBIREAERE 1258
REBSTENERE (ZF——) (BFIA)

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“HK(IFRIC)") -Int 2
& (ERUBRE2ERES) —$2157%

Annual Improvements Project

FRUEE

Annual Improvements Project

FRIEE

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments/revises
to standards and interpretation has had no material effect on the

Group's result and financial position, except for certain additional

disclosures were made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.]  Basis of preparation (Continued)

®)

The following new standards, amendments to standards and (b)
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the year

ended 30th June 2015 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)

BRGEAF o REBGERF38 (BFTA)

Amendment to HKFRS | |

HEBUMBHREERNE | IFNER

Amendments to HKAS |6 and HKAS 41
HBEBEHENFE R RBEB G ERESRHEET

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBIEREES

Amendment to HKAS 27
HBEBSFERFE 7RISR

Annual Improvements Project

FEBER S

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

HEBHEREERF 05 - BEMBRELRNE 255K

BB G R 28RAER]

Amendments to HKAS |
HEBGEERZE RAEET

HKFRS 9 (2014)
BEAMBRSENER (ZF—mM)

HKFRS 14
BRI RS LA 45

HKFRS 15
BRI REEAE 55

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

(©

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation have been issued but are not effective for the year
ended 30th June 2015 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new standards and amendments to standards but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new standards and amendments to
standards would have a significant impact to the Group's results of

operations and financial position.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Company's first financial year commencing
on or after 3rd March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of information in the

consolidated financial statements will be affected.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidianies

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have

been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24 Foreign currency translation

@

®)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the income statement within “finance income or cost".
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

income statement within “other gains, net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
24 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified Shorter of the remaining

as finance lease lease term or useful life
—  Buildings 2% - 2.5%
— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

— Machinery and equipment 12.5%
— Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%
— Tools and moulds 20%

e M IBHRRMEE

2 FESTERRHSE®)

25

0¥ BERXHE

W% -~ B KR TIRIE 2R,
S HERZHEBR(IME)A
B ABRKERBERER
BREAZF o

HEZKAGFABECREE » &
EBERZBR BRI ARAREERN S
RORARSE B R 5% IR B 2 RN AT 1
A ER(NER) R AE
RIEE - A AR ERREE
EEZHHHRRRKERTIIAHE
70

NRERREMENHELINE 11t
o A ERE R e E A -
NRRRMEEENHE LR EH
REMEENTERMGAERSF
HRKANEREDBEREE
mr

=i

- 28R FertHE Mgk
MEMEEN  AEREH
HELi ZBEE

- BF 2% - 2.5%

- MEMEEE AR EE

HEH
#120% 2 8
&

- HRLRE 12.5%

- B RKER 20%
b YNEEIT

- RE 20%

- IARKAR 20%

Annual Report £ £ # % 2014/2015 | 59



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over

the period of leases.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction

costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

2.8

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the income

statement as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other gains, net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were

acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include “trade and bill receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”

and “cash and bank balances” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHHEBES)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 ABEEE)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets © FAHROEHFEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are A EM K EEREES
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the ELBERS Y ELIEEH
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless ¥R 2 FEITHET A - BRIE
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the REZNMHERE SN ]
investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. ERRET_EANLEE

RE BABIIRFERDE
o

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the WHREETHEEERZA(AR

trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the CEAEBARLEZEELR)

asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs R HRUFRARBEERE

ik L IEMHEE  REBR

E)\

for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at BARBENRSKAER - 2L
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. nEBEEBESCLERNIKEESR
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from FRAABERR  MRXHKAL
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has R RFIERX ° BRRE KR
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for- Rens Biga s HsEE
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are MASEERERE BB R
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently b B HREER - MBEEMNR L
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any R - AIHNERBEERIZDR
provision for impairment. BEEAERCRNIBEERR
BOAEBETIER - ERRERRY
FROABERER - ARFAER
M BOE IR 35 R (FOBR TR E
BB -
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of “financial assets at BAREARBEEBRER TR
fair value through profit or loss” are presented in the income statement MBEEINABEEDMEEZ
within “other gains, net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income BE  IREERRERERSIE
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the [Eflas— 58] - BAREBESE
income statement as part of other income when the Group's right to receive BESDENMBEEZREBA
payments is established. PR AN 5 BN FRIE 2 AR -

ERS KRR EMLBA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continveq) 2~ T EEHHEBES)
210 HEEE&)
PRRAHLECERESRFE

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified

as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income. BREHFLABEZEDINEME
Bl iR o

BEOBRAARHENEFRELR
RER - ENERBRNEF AN
EEARDERERINEREES
H&E -

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

ARHERATREZRENAKE
HESTMRER R < FEFIE - MR EE R
HERR ©

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the

income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

EREATAMNTENTHHECHER
¥ TEBERFRAELE S

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or RS EENEE B ER - B75

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in

the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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S IBIRRM T

TESHEEME#E)
211 BEEEHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group

of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

211

2.12

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments

are not reversed through the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so,

the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the income statement within “other gains,

net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

2.14

215

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the
definition of financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged

to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is

recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the company's subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income

tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences

arising from the associate's undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable

profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a maximum
of HK$ 1,500 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the PRC. Contributions are made by the Group
on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement plans based
on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

@

(b)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,

the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(©

(@

Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified performance and service
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

221

222

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's

activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably

measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity

and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as

described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking

into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

®

(i)

(i)

()

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final

dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend.

2.25 Comparative figures

Comparative figure has been reclassified to conform to current year's
presentation for a fairer presentation of the Group's activities. Interest
received in the consolidated statement of cash flows, which have been
previously included in the “financing activities, are now presented in the
“operating activities”. This reclassification has no effect on the Group's
consolidated balance sheets as at both 30th June 2015 and 2014, or the

Group's profit or cash flows for the years ended 30th June 2015 and 2014.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3./

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

2
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB™) and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency

exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB.

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases made
by the relevant group companies in currencies other than their own
functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net foreign
exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2015, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
mainly to sell/purchase USD and RMB, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables and borrowings were also denominated
in foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in Notes
23, 25,26 and 29. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD, management are
of the opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD

is relatively insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

()

Forejgn exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2015, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$693,000 (2014: HK$1,167,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated non-derivative financial

assets and liabilities.

If the RMB forward rate had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
USD (2014: 5%) at 30th June 2015 with all other variables held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year would decrease/
increase by HK$17,600,000 (2014: decrease/increase by HK$
31,400,000), mainly as a result of the fair value changes of the forward

foreign currency contracts.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank. The
Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

©

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2015, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$367,000 (2014: HK$463,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on cash
at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

Credit nisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and available-
for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all derivatives
financial instruments are also entered into with these financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management does not expect any losses

arising from non-performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables (including deposits made) based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in these consolidated financial statements.
The Directors are also of the opinion that deposits are made to
credit worthy parties and do not expect non-performance of the

counterparties.

As at 30th June 2015, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$312,735,000 (2014: HK$304,749,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Ligquidiity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of intermnal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2015, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$679,746,000 (2014:
HK$575,203,000) of which HK$312,735,000 (2014: HK$304,749,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interest payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of bank
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on agreed
schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) @ RBECERE)
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and2years and5 years Total
—fR —-EWMEFA WERFR B
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Group £H
At 30th June 2015 RZZ—RF A=+H
Trade payables EC AN 71,819 — — 71,819
Other payables and accruals BN R RERER 17,596 — — 17,596
Bank borrowings RITEE 318,610 874 — 319,484
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 2,338 — — 2,338
Total k) 410,363 874 — 411,237
At 30th June 2014 RZE—MESA=TH
Trade payables BEHREMNK 98,459 — — 98,459
Other payables and accruals BN R RERER 5,102 = = 15,102
Bank borrowings RITEE 296,383 237 — 296,620
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA 3,701 5,484 = 9,185
Total ik 413,645 5721 — 419,366
Within  Between |  Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—fr -E@MER MERER BE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERr TERr TER
Company YN
At 30th June 2015 RZZ—RE~A=1+H
Accruals HERER 758 = = 758
At 30th June 2014 RZZ—MESA=+H
Accruals HERER 782 = = 782
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBAXEBERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's AEENESEREE  RREX
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for EEREESE  UARFREE
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal RMBEMEREEE ARENE -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R g R RENEREBAREE
EAD N
The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in AEEEREARE  URELE
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust RENEHELRE - RTHFR
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to REERERE  AEEANEGHE
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings. X FRERORSEE - TR
FREEIARITER -
The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is AEENAEBLRERAER -
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total IR RREBFERIAGE ARG
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, B BRFERBEERETRER
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt. Bekth BERRIER (4R

BEERBERMI)IMEHFE -

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2015 R_ZE-hFER_T-HEFXRA
and 2014 TR AREZEELRNT -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRT

Total borrowings (Note 29) BEE(HE29) 317,469 294,828
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) B RE KR e (M 25) (88,048) (97,278)
Net debt (R 229,421 197,550
Total equity eEn 518,431 493,320
Total capital B 747,852 690,870
Gearing ratio BRE/HER 31% 29%
The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2015 was REE-_ZE-—RF A=THILF
mainly resufted from the increase in the total borrowings during the year. BN RENBEEEMSIBER
BELE LT -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
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PREREE &)
33 AREEGH(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level | and

level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2015, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and

derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year
ended 30th June 2015. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are

measured at fair value are set out in Note |8.

WHRNERMSEENERIA
(BN FHTESBIR)N
AREBEKAEEFEZET &
BERMEENATEEMSEE
(hE) BELKBERBORTE
fhst - Wt E—SMIANRAAE
BFENMEERGABTERY
B AZERIAIASLE -

MBS S EEABALIERET
BEMSHHE - ARSRIAIIA
538

ZIREIBELABERASE
M EHHAENEADE -

R-ZZE-h¥ A=1H X&E
ZAHLERBEERTAERT
AEDBIEFIESRIA -

NTARBZE-S—RE A=T
AEFERNEIESRTANE
R BRURARBEAENREY
XERME ISAKE -

Available-for- Derivative
sale financial financial
asset instruments
AHHE 1% Total
HBEE ¢WIA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER
Opening balance & 2,000 (34,381) (32,381)
Gain recognised in profit and loss RiE s iR — 19,938 19,938
Closing balance HiR A ER 2,000 (14,443) (12,443)

Annual Report £ & # % 2014/2015 | 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

ended 30th June 2014.

3 HERREESE)

33 AREEGH(E)

ATRRBE_T-NFRA=1T
ALFENEIESRIANE

% o

Available-for- Derivative

sale financial financial

asset instruments
AN E & Total
HEEE FRIA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET
Opening balance HAAEER 1,730 (4,444) (2.714)
Loss recognised in profit and loss RiEREREE — (29.937) (29,937)
Gain recognised in equity RER TR o 270 — 270
Closing balance HAR A 81 2,000 (34381) (32,381)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

@

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could resutt in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.

4

e M IBHRRMEE

BRI RN
FEBBKEBERBHBRENER
REMEEOERARY ARELHA
ST - At BB T A <

REBYRRELMEEAEF 2 @5HEE
BEREEREOHESRARERER - K
THEREHEERROMGTRERR A
BHEAR AV BFERHEERERL
FREEFERHE

@ YF BERIGEHAREHFL
HERTE
AEEEEEETENE  BER
BN AERES  RERE
B EER  ERABMGIRER
AEEABERLFEELMER
AREENEO ST FERMEH
RBMGE AL EEIEE XI5
NE - B RRENATEERAE
RER/EE - WA ERFHRE
N RIEEERHENERR -
LB BN E RN LB 3
FRIEEEMARARIE -

REZAEREEES
Bl ?W%@ﬁﬂ EX
A - AEBETERBATEFHR
BME - BMERRELRES - AlaE
TERRARIHEERR -
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S IBIRRM T

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

(@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for reversionary income
potential. These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and
future economic conditions. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and
impairment is recognised or reversed in the period in which such estimate

has been changed.

e M IBHRRMEE

4  EREFEFRAEE)

(©

(9

1BEt REYEZ A5 EE

BERENRZ DA BEIRE—{E
8 B AR BB R ERES
AR MHER S BEEER
THEFEe KR FREBETER
RET  YHRXEMAEACE
BHAOMEE RS ELHE
WEEDRERYRRER 2 b
A REMR RS HARREERRL
RR - BREMEZRABERBR
ARG e WS RIRE AT
HARRBHZBE WERMIEZBR
%o [ - RABETRRYE
AR EER RN -

FEW Bl

AEEREHEER(BREE MR
)R EAZE 2 A A 1E R E B
- —BEEHBERBRBAEBET
EREE R BERBE DR - RIS R
& o BB KR EE R H BT &
fhit - BBz eREREREA
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RER °
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S IBIRRM T

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(¢

@

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

e M IBHRRMEE

4  EREFEFRAEE)

@) HEHRELHE
AEERHBZ EREERNAE
B - EERAAERAFSHAERE
B - BELAIE - EREXRBTE
+?$*ﬁi%%ﬁﬁ%§%&ﬁ
c MAFFENRERBEERE
RFEANENEE - ABHESR
SYEBETABREEROMRENR
RIERFRSHAER -

+

=

‘Fﬁﬂ iﬂﬂ*

BETERZERTEBBRERZ
BELMEHEEREEERRAR
A 7] B IR AR B M AT AR VR 8
ZEERERSHIARBRMIER -
ERHCeHEREMAAER
¥ MZEERSNEENE 28
FAATERTMEHEE 2 BAR
FIGHER -

5 WERIHER

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET

Tumnover EEHE
Sales of goods HEEm 1,615,716 1,755,124
Provision of logistic services REDIR RS 4,110 2,172
1,619,826 1,757,296
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products ("Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities,

including the provision of logistic services (“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBRRME
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 RERIBER @)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for

the year ended 30th June 2015 is as follows:

BE_Z-AF/ A=THIFERH
RERBRERREZAZNBEDHE

HT -
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5  E6m IRZH 2 A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#n  FER  FAx TR TER
Turnover e
— Gross revenue —DHREHE 1,135,162 382,829 189,179 4,163 1,711,333
— Inter-segment revenue —DEREHE (87,558) (2,656) (1,293) — (91,507)
Revenue from external customers AN P I ER 1,047,604 380,173 187,886 4,163 1,619,826
Segment results aIE 2,953 35,137 7318 (1,951) 43,457
Finance income g3l 148 167 6 — 321
Finance costs BER (6,109) (1,955) (880) (264) (9,208)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREiAT(E51R),EF (3,008) 33,349 6,444 (2,215) 34,570
Income tax expense BB M (7,566)
Profit for the year ARE A 27,004
Non-controlling interests Il (1,779)
Profit attributable to equity holders ‘A BIAR SR FE1& 4 A
of the Company 25,225
Other information: HiER -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELM
(other than financial instruments (RERIAR
and deferred tax assets) EEHIBEEIN) 822 9,505 8311 294 18,932
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BEREE
and equipment e 765 5,788 10,169 839 17,561
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LKt
and land use rights Rz 398 207 32 78 715
Reversal of impairment FERERD
of inventories (2,791) (113) (102) — (3,006)
Provision for impairment of B RKFRE
trade receivables £ — 948 392 — 1,340
Unrealised fair value gain on THESRMIARER
derivative financial instruments AR EBEKER (19,938) — — — (19,938)
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e BHRRME

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as

at 30th June 2015 is as follows:

KR EER ()
RIBE-RAEFAA=ZTHRELERER
BRREZAZIBREDBERIT

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

g5 ERH IRER Hitr rEH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TEr TEr TEr TEr

Segment assets NEEE 392,363 290,816 156,485 119,739 959,403
Total assets BEE 959,403
Segment liabilities PaR=i3=Xr (74,217) (29,510) (13,351) (6425)  (123,503)
Borrowings E3= (238,011) (28,550) (43,960) (6948)  (317,469)
Total liabilities BafR (440,972)
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e RRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_T-MESA=THILEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2014 is as follows: RERRERREZFZIBRENDE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH  IiREN ity KREHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THRT TET TRT
Tumover = 2
— Gross revenue —DHREHE 1,288,851 377,084 188,983 2423 1,857,341
— Inter-segment revenue —DEREHE (97,149) (1,187) (1,709) — (100,045)
Revenue from external customers MR P MiEs [,191,702 375897 187,274 2423 1,757,296
Segment results NEEE (49.892) 48,276 6,748 21,546 26,678
Finance income Bl e 79 122 7 — 208
Finance costs BHER (6.767) (1481) (810) (179) (9,237)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BBAT (E518), & 7 (56,580) 46917 5,945 21367 17,649
Income tax expense HIET (13/489)
Profit for the year ARE A 4,160
Non-controlling interests Il ©19)
Profit attributable to equity holders ‘A BIAR SR FE1G 4 A
of the Company 3,241
Other information: HiER -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELZM
(other than financial instruments (hemIAR
and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEEEN) 848 4,845 5986 8 11,697
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREE
plant and equipment e 615 5944 9414 826 16,799
Amortisation of leasehold land MET Rt
and land use rights Rz 398 207 Ey) 77 714
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE(EE),/
impairment of inventories P (284) 375 230 2) 319
Provision for impairment of B RWFRE
trade receivables £ — 94 — — 94
Write-off of other receivables o fth FE T AR — — — 86 86
Unrealised fair value loss on TEeRMIARER
derivative financial instruments AnBEER 29937 = = = 29937
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e BHRRME

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as
at 30th June 2014 is as follows:

5

KR EER ()
RIBE-NERAA=ZTHARELERER
BRREZAZIBREDBERIT

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 E@E  IiRB Hith A&HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET FHET THET
Segment assets NEEE 412372 276,398 148901 115,686 953,357
Total assets BEE 953,357
Segment liabilities NEEE (119,778) (25,564) (14210 (5.657)  (165209)
Borrowings f5& (243,604) (21,843) 24671 4710)  (294828)
Total liabilities BaE (460,037)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers
attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2015 is approximately
HK$732,523,000 (2014: HK$870,054,000), and the total of its revenue from
external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately
HK$887,303,000 (2014: HK$887,242,000).

At 30th June 2015, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 158,620,000
(2014: HK$160,641,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$106,343,000 (2014:
HK$102,209,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBRRME
OTHER INCOME 6 HA
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Rental income AEHA 5318 4,867
Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately REMF 2 BB A 14 179,000 % 7T

HK$179,000 (2014: HK$140,000).

OTHER GAINS, NET

(ZZ—MM%E : 140,0005&7T) °

7 HtWes - FE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note |8) REMENDA BERE (K5 18) 1,516 27,234
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts held for trading —BEBERR INERBEY
— unrealised gains/(losses) - RERWE/ (BR) 19,938 (29.937)
— realised (losses)/gains —~BER(E1B)/ K= (2274) 4,029
Net exchange losses INEE BT (810) (515)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(c)) HE—HB L REREGE3I() — (32)
18,370 779
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GAMEERME
8  EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BHMEIIZEX
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TR
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERA(TBEEEKK) 1,342,535 1488219
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17)  F8& 1-ith & 43t 50 F i 8 (P9 5E 17) 715 714
Auditor's remuneration A Gl R 2,696 2,668
Depreciation e 17,561 16,799
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B SRR EEES 1,340 94
Wirite-off of other receivables H fth FE UM R 86
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of inventories FERE(RR) & (3,006) 319
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HENE BEREZELZ
plant and equipment (Yez) /B8 (280) 3
Employee benefit expenses, including Directors' EERMXH(BREESHE)
emoluments (Note 14) (=T 14) 123,512 116611
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings TREFRERENS 8911 8,061
Repairs and maintenance expenses BERREBHRX 3,752 3447
Transportation and packaging expenses B RBERX 27,731 27,321
Travelling and office expenses EREBFRERZ 10,850 10,970
Utility expenses KERX 15,527 13,607
Other expenses HtEHR 48213 47317
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEMAK « DHKARITH
administrative expenses Pt 1,600,057 1,736,264
Representing: &
Cost of sales HEKA 1,420,687 | 565,368
Distribution costs KA 76,358 71,632
Administrative expenses THRZ 103,012 99,264
1,600,057 [,736,264
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FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

9

e M IBHRRMEE

BRBBNER

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Finance income: B -
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITEHFBHA 321 208
Finance costs: HBER
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable —ERAFANZBEER ZRIT
within five years BB 2HE (11,136) (11,330)
— Net exchange gains on financing activities —REEBIVERGFHE 1,928 2,093
(9,208) (9237)
Finance costs, net MBER—FE (8,887) (9,029)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operate in the PRC has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profit for the year at the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

BiE
BENGHIREF ARG ERTOLEF
BREBNZTARA(ZE—HF: A
DZTAER) A ERE - PEBRTIR
BASERTERLREE ZHBRF
AR EREEN RABANEL
R ZEARBEEE o
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S EMFBHRRME
[0 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 BIAX M 4)
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents: Falak s MBEXHA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Current tax; AEFRA -

Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH 1,203 343

PRC corporate income tax REIBRAEH 6,801 11,209

Under-provision in previous years NEEEREETR 3 43

8,007 12,595

Deferred tax (Note 30) AEFEBIA (FY5E 30) (441) 894

7,566 13,489
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEBERBRRADEN 2 HIEERER
amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows: AEBNGHRZMEM:tE 2 B R

ZERIE :

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TRT TR

Profit before income tax Pt A 4 34,570 17,649

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% RER 165%(ZT—MF : 16.5%)

(2014: 16.5%) AEZHE 5,704 2912
Effect of different tax rates in PRC FETAN R FE 3,070 3,389
Income not subject to tax BIBEH Z WA (2,519) (4,288)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes OGIEi 1k s 552 2,100
Tax losses not recognised AERZ B EE 1,742 8,699
Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses FREARERNTBER (99¢6) —
Under-provision in previous years NEEFEERETE 3 43
Others Htt 10 634

7,566 13,489
Il PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE I RRRREEER
COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the BE-ZT-RFE~ A= + El FE
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$3,167,000 for the year FARRAHBRE 2 ARIREEMS
ended 30th June 2015 (2014: HK$3,400,000). i Fl &3,167,000%8 (= T — M4 :
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e M IBHRRMEE

12 DIVIDENDS 12 KR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Interim, paid, of Nil (2014: HK1.0 cent) TR HIRE
per ordinary share (ZZ2—NF : BREAER 1.0B) = 3,692

Final, proposed, of HK1.0 cent (2014: Nil)

BOR AR B B A% 1.0l

per ordinary share

(ZZ—mF : &)

3,692 —

3,692 3,692

Notes:

At a meeting held on 26th September 2013, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totaling HK$3,692,000 for the year ended 30th June 2013, which was
paid during the year ended 30th June 2014, and has been reflected as an appropriation of
retained eamnings for the year ended 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2014, the Directors declared an interim dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st December
2013, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2014, and has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained eamnings for the year ended 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 25th September 2014, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2015, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 3| st December 2014.

At a meeting held on 24th September 2015, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000. This proposed dividend was not reflected as
a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained eamings for the year ending 30th June 2016.

Bt -

Z-=FAA-t BBTZEE
L E%Emﬁﬁifz——ﬁﬁ
STHIEEERBERBREER .08
il ££3,692,0007 7T © HLEBEEER
HE-_Z-—MESA=1THIIFEAX
it WEREBE-_ZE—NFEA=1H
EFEZRBEFFHE

T-NFE-_A-+tHBT2E8F
t i% hREE—_T—=%1+_-AH
S+—BLAEARETHREER
LOAL » ££3,692,0007 7T » WIERK S
WA ERE B R SEREARE
BEREZ_T—NE A=THItF
BZREBEMFAE

—MENAZTRASES
t EEEAHEE=S - @i/\ﬂ
=T HEFEERERRARE -

RIE-HF-A-+HRET
L EEFRIREE T @¢+_
A=+ —R IR A SRR HK

B o

o

—AFENAZTHEART

§$EM/$X%&éthm%
fill - ££3,692,00078 7T © 1 T #E K A%
WEARGBRERPIERFGRE - |
BREE—E— R EAAZTHILEE
ZRBEMPHE
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e BHRRME

13

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

BREF

-2
FRERBRMIIR D FRRES NG
NERNBRTEBRZMEFHHES -

2015 2014

Profit attributable to equity holders of NG EY 3y
the Company (HK$'000) (F%L) 25,225 3,241
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBTE BB METFI9H 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREXRFN (SREM) 6.83 0.88

Diluted

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from the Company's share options. Dilutive earnings per share for the
years ended 30th June 2015 and 2014 equal basic earnings per share as there was

no dilutive potential ordinary share as at the year ended 30th June 2015 and 2014,

#E

AEEREERNE CHERTEA
Bz mgEFa8mELRAE  ABRHAE
REEBEN AR TRBREEEHE
- N -_FT-RAFXA=TARC-T
—mEAA=TH ARALEAHE
BACERE Bt RBE-F—1
ERAZTERZZE-NERA=TH
EREFE  SRESRNBFINER
EAREH -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 14 EERANXL(BEESHE)
EMOLUMENTSY)

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Wages, salaries and other allowances T8 # R HE 2R, 117,466 111,286
Pension costs BINEKA 6,046 5325
123,512 116611
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e M IBHRRMEE

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EEREEEEAEZHE

(a)  Directors’ emoluments @) EFEHz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_Z-1F A=THILLFE
ended 30th June 2015 is set out below: BuUEEzMEmT
Salaries,
other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
in kind Discretionary scheme
- bonuses )
Fees HMEE BTHE Bie Total
Name of Director BExps we REVHNZR AL 2R e

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr HUI Sai Chung sy 1,375 2,528 — 325 4228
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR LA 1,375 2,528 — 325 4228
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ~ B TRfE L — 2,528 — 284 2812
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRELE = 2,528 = 202 2,730
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBEX LT — 1,775 = 182 1,957
Mr NG Chi Ming REBLE - 1,753 4 210 1,967
Independent BUFHTES

Non- Executive Directors

MrHO Wai Chi, Paul AREEEE 200 — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIMKBEL & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung IBngEL A& 150 — — — 150
Total B 3,250 13,640 4 1,528 18,422
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e BHRRME

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 ESEREEEBASZME @)

(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @) EFEHz(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T-MFE A=THILFE
ended 30th June 2014 is set out below: BuUEEzMEWT
Salaries,
other Employer's
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
e - bonuses ExY
Fees Hofh)2 A BITRE BRE Total
Name of Director EENA e KEDIG HITEAL K k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THET THET THET
Executive Directors WITEZS
Mr HUI Sai Chung Fauebtes 950 2,845 — 312 4107
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong RN KA 950 2,845 — 312 4,107
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ~ & F&iE+ — 2,444 — 250 2,694
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipgERLE — 2444 — 175 2619
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBUL — [716 — 175 1,891
Mr NG Chi Ming RERAKE — 1,653 — 198 1,851
Independent BUFHNTES
Non- Executive Directors
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fESEE 200 — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRkELE 150 = = = 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmELE 150 — — — 150
Total it 2,400 13,947 — 1422 17,769
No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil). No RAEENTBESHERS M
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement (CZE—MNE:8/) - REAEE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office NAEBEHEN TFERESME
during the year (2014; Nil). ek L EEWE 2 HE(ZT

—INE ) o

106 | AnnualReport % & # % 2014 /2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15
(Continued)

®)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2014: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

e M IBHRRMEE

EEREEEBEABZHE @)

() HEREFHAL

REER ERURRFMAL
o IO (ZF—MF : EOf) RE
FEMEEREXZF 2 AMH
RE - R IM—URSHFHALR

FEEZFHMFBOT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind Ml Ep B REYFS 2,203 2,203
Discretionary bonus B4 82 457
Pension costs BIRE AR 264 264
2,549 2,924

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2014: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil).

FRATZHERA—BRTE
T-RALE=ZABEL(ZT N
F:_BATET - ATE=BE
BT BERN - REEY EF E
BAT(BREZREMES)M
M & (ERREMASRERK LR
ZERE(ZT-MF - &) -
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e BHRRME

|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l6 W% BMERKE

Fumniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools
HELH  improvements equpment il HE vehicles and moulds Total
RET BEMERE BERRB RBLERE "E  IARKA an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TEL TARL TAT TR TAT
At Ist July 2013 R=Z-=%+A—-R
Cost KA 125408 36815 179,504 20260 8,609 210l 372,697
Accumulated depreciation 23T E (35359) (16,674) (155,650) (17944) (6405) (1,380) (233412)
Net book amount RHE 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2204 721 139,285
Year ended 30th HEZZ-IF
June 2014 ANAZTRIERE
Opening net book amount BOEREFE 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2204 721 139,285
Addtions il - 4060 7028 1027 167 58 12.340
Disposalstwrite-off e/ M = = Q) = ™) 3 (108)
Depreciation ik (2853) (6353) (5.81) @871 (816) (75) (16799)
Closing net book amount HRREHE 87,196 7,848 25049 2472 1482 671 134718
At 30th June 2014 RZE-MERA=1A
Cost KA 125408 40861 186,354 19,191 8340 2101 382255
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (38212) (23013) (161,305) (16719) (6858) (1430) (247537
Net book amount KHE 87,196 17,848 25049 2472 482 671 134718
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e M IBHRRMEE
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16 W% BERRE)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
landand  Leasehold ~ Machinery  equipment
buildings  improvements and B Motor Tools  Construction
HELH BE  equipment #ER vehicles  andmoulds in progress Total

kEF  NERE  BERRE  ROERE RE IRRER  HRIE 3
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000

TR Thn TR TR Thn TR TR ThT

Year ended 30th June 2015 HEZZ-1F
AAZTHILER

Opening net book amount HNREFE 87,19 17,848 25,049 2472 1,482 671 — 134718
Additions K - 2,803 8317 1,898 464 307 1,755 5,544
Transfer between categories NERER 112 (147) — 35 — —
Disposalswrite-off e/ Mk — — 4 41) — (14 — (59)
Deprecition 58 R8sl @) 67y (104) (687) ) —(175))
Closing net book amount HREFE 84,345 13,530 27,692 3139 1,259 ) 1,755 132,642
At 30th June 2015 RZZ-1F
~R=TR
Cost S 125,408 43641 192,868 20209 7987 2418 1,755 394292
Accumulated depreciation RitE (41,063) (30,117)  (165,176) (17,070) (6,728) (1,49) - (261,650)
Net book amount REFE 84,345 13,530 27,692 3139 1,259 9 1,755 132,642
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S EMFBHRRME
|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 W% BERRE @)
Net book value of leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows: ME T MEFZREFESTAT -
Group
As at 30th June
L
RAR=1H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, held on: EEBRACHELT I RET :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 33,640 34,836
Buildings in the PRC, held on: ERBEHEZET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 50,705 52,360
84,345 87,196
(@)  Depreciation expense of HK$13,895,000 (2014: HK$13,260,000) has been @ I E B HI1389500008 (= &

included in cost of sales, HK$307,000 (2014: HK$402,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,359,000 (2014: HK$3,137,000) in administrative expenses.

(b)  As at 30th June 2015, the net book amount of property, plant and (b)
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to

approximately HK$46,245,000 (2014: HK$47,744,000).
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HAMBREME
|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17 HEIMRTERE
The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid ASEREEL R T HE AR ER
operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows: REFENGEHENE  HEEFED
T
Group
58
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
At beginning of the year F1 22,225 22939
Amortisation B (715) 714)
At end of the year FR 21,510 22,225
Geographical analysis: RIE A -
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: ERBRACHELDH
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTEZHE 1,018 1,050
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: ERERA 2 LR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFEZHE 20,492 21,175
21,510 22,225
As at 30th June 2015, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights RZZE-—REXA=1TH HELHEK
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately I 3 65 A3 AE BR 1 F (E 493,671,000 7T
HK$3,671,000 (2014: HK$3,793,000). (ZF—M4F : 37930008 7L) EERT
R1T RAEERFERITEE -
I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWx
Group
£H
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TRT
At beginning of the year F9 103,559 76,325
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REMEZ AR BEKER(E7) 1,516 27,234
At end of the year FR 105,075 103,559
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IBIRRM T

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

@

Fair value hierarchy

18

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was

performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine the fair

value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2015 and 2014. The

revaluation gains or losses are included in “other gains, net” (Note 7) in the

consolidated income statement. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

REYX (&)

(a) L EERE
AEENREMEREEMEET
RZE-—AFNM_ZT-NFRA
ST RRTEUMGE  WETHEA
nEBE - ZEfkaEEaELER
Al AR E M — FE ]+
(F&E7) - TRABHEED TR
AREBEARNRENE -

Fair value
measurements at
30th June 2015
using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
R-ZB-H%
AH=1H
MABANAT
B AL
WARBETE
Description it (%38)
HK$'000
TER
Recurring fair value measurements REUMAABETE
Investment properties: REME
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —T¥REE-FH 94,000
— Car park units - Hong Kong —REL-FE 1,600
— Commercial office units and apartment - PRC —EERNEEM P E 9,475
105,075
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I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

e M IBHRRMEE

RENX @)

AR BERE ()

Fair value
measurements at
30th June 2014
using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
R-E—DF
~A=TH
MABKRAA
ERHAEL
WAfBERE
Description it (F3E)
HK$'000
TR
Recurring fair value measurements REMLREETE
Investment properties: REWE
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —T¥REE-FH 92,800
— Car park units - Hong Kong —FEA-FE 1,400
— Commesrcial office units and apartment - PRC —BERAEEL—F 9,359
103,559
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair AEENBRE AR ERERNE
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances HBERNENAE - BRAA

that caused the transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

BEER 2 FER -

RERTEE - F2RE3IERH
L3
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e BHRRME
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW=#E)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) LrEEFEE )
The following table presents the changes in investment properties with fair TRETREBEE_Z—AFKHA
value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the =+H ﬁiFW%‘J}EﬁEKT\Efﬁ%
year ended 30th June 2015. BANARBEFE(FEIE)NR
BNERD)
30th June 2015
R-ZB-HAFXA=t+H
PRC Hong Kong Total
i Bk R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Opening balance HAAEER 9,359 94,200 103,559
Net gain from fair value adjustment ARBEARRGEE 116 1,400 1,516
Closing balance HRR R 9,475 95,600 105,075
Total gains for the year included in FRkEEE -
the consolidated income statement, BREERS KRR
under other gains [ E Y as | 116 1,400 1,516
30th June 2014
R-E-EFA=TH
PRC Hong Kong Total
i 0 ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Opening balance HAAEER 7975 68,350 76,325
Net gain from fair value adjustment DhEEARRGFE 1,384 25,850 27,234
Closing balance HR& it eh 9,359 94,200 103,559
Total gains for the year included in FRkEEE -
the consolidated income statement, BRERS KERN
under other gains [E e | 1,384 25,850 27234

AEBURBERFENKREY
¥RERUTEERI T ZHEER
A o

The Group's interests in investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC are

held on leases of between [0 to 50 years.
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

®)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at HK$105,075,000 (2014:
HK$103,559,000) as at 30th June 2015 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an
independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating lease arrangements,
further summary details of which are included in Note 18(e) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The finance department
reports directly to the CODM. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CODM, finance department and the independent

valuer.
At each financial year end the finance department:

0 Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

0 Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior year valuation report; and
0 Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date between

the chief operating decision-maker, finance team and the independent valuer.

e M IBHRRMEE

18 REWRH#E)

(®)

AL B4 E R

AEENREMERBUEEME
MEETE—S—RFA=1H
518 4 105,075,000 0 (=T —N

£ 1 103,559,0005& 7T ) UL {4 (ERD
BERBRATEEER - WU

ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%mﬁmm%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

TSR - BORENFAREHR
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%”* E—TFE

RERE IR AR HTRE 18(e) I EE o

AEEHGHAPBRS BOLE
VR EMNGEETR o B
ERMBREERREER - BF
RERFE  MBHEAGENHE

AmmEREMEEER
ESEMHFER  MBEHHE

s REUHBURERSHHRA
EXBA

o REMEHEELEEEE
RELB TR

o EBURHEMETTR

NEERERY  F3IBAAERE
MEPHERELRRE - MHH
B EMED AR
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S IBIRRM T

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18

(c)  Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally determined
using the income approach and market comparable approach which largely
use unobservable inputs and taking into account the significant adjustment
on term yield to account for the risk upon reversionary and the estimation
in vacancy rate after expiry of current lease. These significant unobservable

inputs include:

REYNX &)
© 1EERM

AREADHTAREE ALt
DA fBIEE

AEENRENERRBE—R
BEKEEGE  EFEEER
%$ﬂ%$ﬁk'ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂg

KMERFZE Ut AHEE
%ﬁﬁmﬂ B E R AR E R
B ERMME - WEBBRAA
BRBARRE:

Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2015 unobservable inputs
R=B-1F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs FUBEHA
i ZRAEE fbERE FTERBA FUERBAEE HAABENRR
(HK$'000)
(FiEn)
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 94000 Income approach Rental value HK$6.76 - HK$9.32 per  The higher the rental value,
IXAEEN-FH method MME month per square feet the higher the fair value
gk FYnREAeT6ET HEHS RABEHS
F9AET
Yield rate 297% - 4.10% The higher the yield rate,
5% the lower the fair value
ERXER - DABELE
Car park units — Hong Kong 1,600 Income approach Rental value  HK$7,725 per month per unit ~ The higher the rental value,
FEf-FH method e BENFATISBT the higher the fair value
W% HELS  AEELR
Yield rate [159% The higher the yield rate,
5% the lower the fair value
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

©

Valuation technigues (Continued)

e M IBHRRMEE

18 REWRH#E)

© 1HERME)

Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2015 unobservable inputs
RZE-1% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs L 22 DN
fhad ZRRfEE fbERfE AU AUBRBAEE HRAEENBR
(HK$'000)
(F&7r)
Commercial office units and apartment - PRC 4665 Income approach Rental value RMB6098 per  The higher the rental value,
BERAZEN -4 method HE month per square meter the higher the fair value
g% BYNKBANBARE HEMR AAEEER
Yield rate 3.26% The higher the yield rate,
LB X the lower the fair value
ZEXERE  DABESE
Commercial office units and apartment - PRC 4810 Market comparable  Price per square  RMB23975 per square meter  The higher the price per
BERAZE -4 approach method meter BYAREH square meter,
mEILR  §EAKREE BITS AR the higher the fair value
hi& BYNREEES -

D EEER
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e BHRRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued)

18 REWR#E)

© HERME)

Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2014 unobservable inputs
W_E-I4F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
~NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEBA
it ZRAEE fbERkl  FTBEEHA FIBFGAGE HRABENER
(HK$'000)
(Fi&7)
Industrial building units - Hong Kong 92800  Income approach Rental value HK$6.76 - HK$9.03 per  The higher the rental value,
IXAEEfN-F# method HE month per square feet the higher the fair value
Wg % BYRREA6TET HEHS RABEHS
FIBAT
Yield rate 301%-402%  The higher the yield rate, the
EEX lower the fair value
SEHUS AABEUE
Car park units — Hong Kong [400  Income approach Rental value HK$7475 per The higher the rental value,
FEf-F% method MME month per unit the higher the fair value
Yk BENGATSAT HBESR AAEEES
Yield rate 12.81% The higher the yield rate,
EEX the lower the fair value
SEHUS AABEUE
Commercial office units and apartment - PRC 9359 Income approach Rental value ~ RMB64.03-RMB87.07 per  The higher the rental value,
BERAZER - method MME month per square meter the higher the fair value
gk FYNAEAMNBARE HESS KAEBEHS

Yield rate

During the year, the valuation techniques of certain investment properties

located in PRC adopted market comparable approach (2014: income

approach) in the view that these properties were vacant and awaiting to be

rent out as at 30th June 2015.

118 | AnnualReport % & # % 2014 /2015

28707 ARE

344% - 444% The higher the yield rate,

the lower the fair value

SREE - DAEEGE

RZZE-RFAA=TH A5
IR RERREMELREE R
SHHAE - ARRAFER -
BEMEUT BB A2 EE
BT HEE(CE—NE ks
%) o

A A
25



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18
(d)  As at 30th June 2015, the fair value of investment properties pledged
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$29,383,000 (2014: HK$29,008,000).

(e)  The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

e M IBHRRMEE

REY= (&)

(d RIZE-—RFSA=1H KEY
F¥RMEFE#29383000% (=
T — 94 :29,008000/ T ) E &
WY HRIT AEAEERERITE
o

) BETTHEOELEE  FAR
R E SR T -

Group
&M
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TRT
Not later than one year —FR 3,323 2,405
Later than one year and not later than five years —FREDMERRF 1,442 414
4,765 2819
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EBREE
Group
&8
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR
Technical know-how SR psIE]
Cost A 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment 25RE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount AREHE - —

During the year ended 30th June 2015 and 2014, the Directors assessed the
recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying value
of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its future use and full

provision was made.

REBEEZZ-NER-Z-—RF A=+
HIEFER EXEmARMARZT
WEEELRASEREESATEERK
fERRIRE - FitF e 2 REREE
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e BHRRME

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 20 THHENBEE
Group
£E
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
At Ist July RtA—H 2,000 1,730
Net gains transferred to equity BEEES 2 Wa — 270
At 30th June KAA=+H 2,000 2,000
Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted AHEENBEERRNERBRZH
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated in SAMZELTRRAZAD 2 =B~ #
HK$. t o S BANETREN
21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 20 BUHELRARRRE

SUBSIDIARIES

(a)  Investments in subsidiaries - Company

(@) WERFGRE—RF]

Company
A
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - AR 62,711 62711

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2015

are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from subsidianes - Company
The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. The

amounts are denominated in HK$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

©

Matenrial non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2015 was HK$21,336,000
(2014: HK$21,461,000), of which HK$22,572,000 (2014: HK$22,738,000) is
attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited (“NHEPML").
The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries were not

matenial.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of HK$ 1,162,863 (2014: HK$1,559,816)
were held in the PRC and were subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provided for restrictions on
exporting capital from the region, other than through normal dividends or

remittance of revenue income through import/export companies.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are matenial to the Group.

e M IBHRRMEE

2l EUHBLARRRERE &)

(©

EAMHFE
RZE-—RENA=+HBEE
Il 4 25 48 58 £21,336,0008 TL(=
T—OF:2046100087L) &
F122,572,0007%8 L(=ZF — MW 4 :
227380008 T ) BREATEE
HAEBAR([REIRER]) - 8
H bt B A 7 B bl
TEK°

ENGE
REIBZHARERBOIR
11628638 L(ZF — W F -
1559816 BT ) FREFRE  X&
HEINEE FIFTRE o LEINEE
HIR B #E S EEHERIINEBR
IEFRRA S b A A R E i
@BIBRIN) o

EBEERIHEHI RSB AR
MR BER

AT e 41 52 B E R RO FE IR 48
R B AR BRI ERMN -
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SZEMBRTMEE
21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 2l EBUNBLARRKRIKRE#)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) EXBHFERE (E)
Summarised balance sheet BEEEEEBR
NHEPML
RETRER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FEr
Current e
Assets BE 100,968 92,154
Liabilities Bl (57,477) (49,305)
Current net assets FRENEE 43,491 42,849
Non-current IERED
Assets EE 55,892 57,605
Liabilities afE (472) (844)
Non-curentnetassets — FFmEEE 55420 56761
Net assets FEE 98911 99,610
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e M IBHRRMEE

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 20 BUMEBARRKRRE M)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (o) ERBHFERER (E)
Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive income mEWRK LAl ER
NHEPML
REITRER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#x TRT
Revenue LG 189,179 188,999
Profit before income tax BRAE A& A 8,369 5738
Income tax expense HIEXZ M (1,068) (1,381
Post-tax profit BREI& A 7,301 4,357
Other comprehensive income Hhkr e W — -
Total comprehensive income malaes 7,301 4357
Total comprehensive income allocated to mEWR AR
non-controlling interests FEin bR 1,738 1,036
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest XTI RIS 2 RS 1,904 1,904
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e BHRRME

21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 21

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)  Matenal non-controlling interests (Continued)

BUMBARARRRE#®)

() EBEXFZHER(E)

Summarised cash flows REHRSMER
NHEPML
RETREN
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THET
Cash flows from operating activities REFBZREN
Cash generated from operations REFXBMEEZRE 5,671 36,386
Income tax paid g (3,206) (4,959)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBREEZFHE 2,465 31,427
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBIERAZFRE (8,306) (5,979)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities ~ BREEBFTEL,/ (FA) 2FHE 9,992 (28,605)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ~ BH&RIFSFRE M/ (BD) 4,151 (3,157)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOzRe PR EER 2,796 5953
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Be kR eEH 2 INEWE — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEeRA2EHE 6,947 2,796

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHRRMEE
INVENTORIES 2 ®E
Group
EL ]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Trading stocks BOEKEER 167,337 166,691
Raw materials JRE 80,984 77,189
Finished goods R m 39,464 39,207
287,785 283,087
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the PR A W ER R N3 E KA TR E R R B
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,423,693,000 Y FERARE HH A 423693,000%
(2014: HK$1,565,049,000). JL(ZZ 0% : 1,565,049,00087T) °
Reversal of provision for inventories amounted to HK$3,006,000 (2014: provision A& B AFE B % 453,006000% 7T
for HK$319,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the consolidated (ZZ—MF : BH3190008T)2FE
income statement. REEE  YRESKRARAEEXR
RAK o
Inventories amounting to HK$ 189,832,000 (2014: HK$226,652,000) were held A #£189,832,000% (= T — W F :
under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 29). 226,652,000 7T ) 2 F EIRBEFTMIRR
TERZZHRA (HE29) -
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 ESRBRKERRE
Group
58
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
TR THET
Trade receivables EC e 253,263 261,275
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B MO E R (4,700) (3,489)
248,563 257,786
Bills receivable e 27,948 23212
276,511 280,998
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e BHRRME

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

23

BZRURRERREE @)
BHRYGRREEN TS % REN -

currencies:
Group
EL ]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
HK$ BT 73479 77445
RMB ARE 155,303 154,026
usD e 24,481 29,804
253,263 261,275
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. BHRKF REEREE A BERLD -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group’s sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance bill. The ageing

analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

HRAEEREAR Y RPH  FUE
SRR S ERY Erh  ER -

TEBARBNHENEERR=TE
NTE - HBRAERAMRIRTELESR
HAET BHRERRERE KRR

AT :
Group
-3
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 230,126 231,545
91 - 180 days 91-180 A 15,544 17,548
Over 180 days 818 180 H 7,593 12,182
253,263 261275
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30th June 2015, trade receivables of HK$51,318,000 (2014: HK$77,371,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. The credit quality of trade
receivables neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
historical information about the counterparty default rates. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

23

e M IBHRRMEE

ESRURKRERRE &)
RZZE—REXA=Z+H EHELX
51,318,000 7 (ZZ— M4 : 77,371,000
AL EEBHELRHE - WEAHK
RENEFRURNEEEERERS
ZEMU AR ENREERETT
- WEFBEPRZEKMIABRE
RSN BEIER - LS8 HRITH
BRECHITINT -

Group

&8
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT

Past due by B

| - 30 days 1-30 8 34,358 45388
31 - 60 days 31-60 B 11,760 11228
Over 60 days HaiA 60 B 5,200 20,755
51,318 77371

As of 30th June 2015, trade receivables of HK$4,700,000 (2014: HK$3,489,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$4,700,000 (2014:
HK$3,489,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations. Majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than
360 days (2014: 360 days).

RZZE-—REXA=Z+H EH5REX
4,700,000 7t(= T — 74 £ : 3,489,000
BIL)EERHE - R-T-AFAA=T
A BES5 547000008 T(ZF—0N
6 3,489,000/ )  ERIRENE 5E
WHEERERERBRAIMEEREH
MBUKP o W EREKKAHME @
8360 B (ZZ—MF : 360A) °
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SFEMBRRMEE
23  TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 BSRUWRKREWRE#)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as AEE B HRIGUREREZSH AT -
follows:
Group
28
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At beginning of the year F14 3,489 3395
Provision for impairment B 1,340 94
Write-off during the year EH =R (129) —
At end of the year FR 4,700 3489
Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are EREBZIBEETER—BNATH
denominated in the following currencies: AW WATHEBRELR
Group
E ]
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
HK$ BT 1,239 —
UsD RTT 1,126 1,054
RMB ARE 25,583 22,158
27,948 23212
The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no FBUREEZEAEREAREBEROK
recent history of default on bills receivable. Bl VB FE R < # R AT ER
Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance bills R-E—REAA=1THAEEZIBE
amounting to approximately HK$9,583,000 (2014: HK$7,220,000) with recourse in A B 499,583,000 T (ZF — M F
exchange for cash as at 30th June 2015. The transactions have been accounted for 7,220,000 70 ) RISR 1T 7A H IEZ BB TR
as collateralised bank advances (Note 29). TURRBRE - BEXHEI RERL

HORITER (ML 29) °
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e M IBHRRMEE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fTEEmMIA
Group
£
2015 2014
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aff BE BB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TAT TR
Held for trading FEHE
— Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note) —SMERHERE 4 (H3E) Il 14,554 152 34,533
Note: BifsE
Forward foreign exchange contracts INEEREIE A

As at 30th June 2015, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts mainly to sell/

purchase USD and purchase RMB. The maximum notional principal amounts of these outstanding

forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June were as follows:

RZB-RFRA=TH  FEEBRZUWIN
EEBANIBNE BXTREARE - R
NAZTARERRYINERBE N2 ZAR
EAZENT :

Group
%8

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
Sell HK$ for USD SHEBTUEAET 2,269,800 1,131,000
Sell USD for HK$ HEETAEABT 15,600 15,600
Sell USD for RMB HEETUEAARK 1,070,628 1,297,140
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S EMFBHRRME
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BRERBITHER
Group Company
E ] NH

2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET TR TR
Cash on hand Rekn 999 491 = =
Bank balances R1TAEER 87,049 96,787 51 105
88,048 97,278 51 105

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: RERBIERATIERE REA

Group Company
£E A7

2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TiET
HK$ BT 10,092 10849 51 105
RMB ARE 59,435 64819 — —
ush ETT 18,265 21,358 — —
Others Ht 256 252 — —
88,048 97,278 51 105

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

RITESREEARTERZFHNE

BREXA B

AEBE 2 RIR1THEERL 56,250,000 8
JL(ZZ—P4 : 63,037,000/87C) R E
ZBIEF BERECELTRHER
PR A A BT B 2 INEE B 6145 165 o

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$56,250,000 (2014: HK$63,037,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is

subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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e M IBHRRMEE

26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 EBFZENAX
ABRHERBALER S & TAEE
ZER-—BRR=TZENTH -

A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group.

BIRNTRERAZREAMNMT

The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

Group
£H

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0-90 B 70,798 97,572
91 - 180 days 91-180 A 148 35
Over 180 days 818 180 H 873 852
71,819 98,459

BPRNRCEREEEL RN A EEM
B UWATHERREN

The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

Group
£F

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THBT
HK$ BT 4,58] 7573
RMB AR 26,819 27,304
UsD ETT 40,364 63515
Singapore dollar I T 55 67
71,819 98,459
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e BHRRME

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BRARBRAGE
Share capital Bx
Number  Share capital
of ordinary nominal
shares of value
HK$0.10 each HK$'000
SREE RAEE
0.1087TZ HK$’ 000
LERYE T
Authorised: EERA
At Ist July 2013, 30th June 2014 and 2015 W-Z—=%+A—H —T—HmF
RZZ-RFA=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARRA -
At Ist July 2013, 30th June 2014 and 2015 R-ZZB-—ZF+tHA—H ZF-—0OF
rR=FT—AF~A=1H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium REEE
HK$'000
T
At Ist July 2013, 30th June 2014 and 2015 R-ZZB-—=FtA—H ' Z2-0OF
E=E-hF A=1H 62,466
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=
e RRMEE
28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
(a)  Group (@ %
Other reserves
Hiph&
Available-
for-sale
Share Capital financial Exchange
option reserve asset  fluctuation
reserve (note (i))  Revaluation reserve reserve Retained
BR EAREH reserve B EX Sub-total earnings Total
Bae (WE() EfiR% BERRE KBRS Mt RERER 2
HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Térn  TEn fér  fEr  fEr  fEr  fEx  TEx
At IstJuly 2013 R=2-=£tA-R 415 408 759 1040 72166 81619 194735 376354
Profitfor the year AERH - - = = = = 34 341
Revaluation gain of an avaiable-for- e HAE B G
sale financial asset - - - 20 - 270 - 20
Cumency translation differences EXER - - - - ® ® - ®)
Dividend paid ket
~2012/2013 final dividend paid -XNZF-Z/2%-=%K
AERE - - = = = = (369) (369)
= 20132014 nterim dividend paid -XWZB-=/22-PER
e - - - = = = (369) (369)
At 30th June 2014 RZE-MERA=TH 415 408 7590 310 72,158 81,881 290592 31473
At Istuy 2014 RZ-MELA-A 415 408 7590 1310 72,158 81881 29059 34T
Profitfor the year RERT| - - - - = = 2505 2505
Currency transation diferences EiEE - - = = I I = Il
Share options lapsed RIREALL 415) - - — — (415) 415 =
At 30th June 2015 RZF-REA=1A - 408 7590 1310 7,169 81477 316,232 397,709
Representing R%:
Proposed 2014/2015 fial dvidend BE-3-M/5-R5E
RERE 360
Otrers £t 312540
316232
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e BHRRME

28 RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Company

28 fEE)
(b) Z2E

Other reserves

HivfE
Contributed Share
surplus option
(note (ii)) reserve Retained
EfEN BR Sub-total earnings Total
(B & (ii)) ERE Mt REEN am
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FERT FER FET
At Ist July 2013 RZE—=%+tA—H 62511 415 62926 6,660 69,586
Profit for the year RE T — — — 3,400 3,400
201202013 final dividend paid =~ X =F—=/
“T-=FERERE — — (3692) (3692)
201312014 interim dividend paid Xt —=B—=/
“E-MEEHHRE — — — (3692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2014 RZT—MF
~AZTA 62511 415 62,926 2676 65,602
At st July 2014 RZE-mHE+A—H 62,511 415 62,926 2,676 65,602
Profit for the year AEHF — — — 3,167 3,167
Share options lapsed AR | = (415) (415) 415 =
At 30th June 2015 RZZ-RFARA=TH 62,511 = 62,511 6,258 68,769
Representing; &
Proposed 201412015 gE=—T-m/
final dividend “E-nERE
RERR S 3,692
Others Hit 2,566
6,258
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e M IBHRRMEE

28 fRiE#E)
(b) Ra/(18)

28 RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Company (Continued)

Notes: Bzt -

()  Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2014: HK$408,000) represents the () AKEZEKRE 408000
aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic B IL(Z T — IO 4 : 408,000
Materials Limited and the difference between the nominal amount of the share T)REEBRERMERA A
capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of ZERZEETRNBELR
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in —ANEEARABEEEESE
1994 (the “Reorganisation”). BIEADMBETZRAEE

DA B2 #4028 ) 2 R AR
HEEEMEZZRE -
(i) Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the (if) ARAZEHABE  JINgi

consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.
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e BHRRME

29 BORROWINGS 9 fEE
Group
%8
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Current borrowings MEEE
Bank loans due for repayment within FR—FRNEEL
one year-secured (Note 3.1(d)) RITER-FER
(Pt &E3.1(d)) 107,725 53481
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which contain R —FREZBRSEK
a repayment on demand clause-secured (Note 3.1(d)) ERERIGEXZ
RITEH—FEM
(BE3.1(d)) 850 233
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within FR—FNERZET
one year-secured (Note 3.1(d))